Any history of the Fall
River area must include
Dighton Rock.

Whatever the ancient
origins of the intricate
and superimposed mark-
ings on the 40-ton boulder,
they indicate visitors of
an early civilization were
here, making the sand-
stone rock probably
America’s oldest pet-
roglyph.

There are dozens of
theories about the
messages or records on
the stone which for cen-
turies, until the last
decade, lay in sand on the
eastern bank of the Taun-
ton River, two thirds of it
most of the time below the
low water mark.

Today the rock monu-
ment sits high and dry in
a modern museum at As-

sonet Neck in Berkley,
just yards from its initial
location and available for
all to study.

Several countries and
cultures have set claim to
the inscriptions. All will
agree, some of them are
Indian in character.

But the Lebanese, mod-
ern day counterparts of
the Phoenician adven-
turers from Carthage;
and the Nordic races,
representative now of the
Vikings, contend some of
the markings were made
by pre-colonial era ex-
plorers from those
civilizations.

As early as 1680, Har-
vard University graduate
John Danforth heard
about the rock and came
to Dighton to copy the in-
scriptions. He said the

New World hieroglyphics
of the Indians told of a
ship sailing up the river
and of men who came
ashore and killed their
sachem.

Another important
visitor was Cotton
Mather, who in a 1690 ser-
mon commented upon the
‘“unaccountable engrav-
ings-h

However, John Smi-
bert, an American por-
trait painter, visited the
rock in 1729 and said
the marks came from
‘‘casual corrosion by
waves of the sea.”

Probably the greatest
inroads into whatever
secrets the rock holds
came from the extensive
studies of the late Pro-
fessor Edmund B. Dela-
barre of Brown Universi-

Dighton Rock Retair

ty, who summered near
the site.

He began his work in
1913, trying to weave a
solid inscription through
the superimposed mass of
figures and carvings on
the flat, or river-facing
side of the stone. He came
up with a key set of
characters, he contended
read: “1511. V. Dei Hic
Dux Ind.” Its translation,
the latter part from the
Latin abbreviations,
Delabarre said meant;:
“By the will of God, here 1
became leader of the
Indians.”

The 1511, which Dela-
barre took a the date of
the cryptic markings, was
the key. He worked
through 600 volumes of
early 16th century ex-
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plorers before coming up
with his theory.

It was that the inscrip-
tions answered the unex-
pected failure of the
return to Portugal in 1502
from Newfoundland of
one of its greatest ex-
plorers.

On May 12, 1500, King
Dom Manuel of Portugal
granted to famed explorer
Gaspar Corte Real lands
and island, he had dis-
covered in prior voyages.
The Portuguese writers of
the time, Antonio Gal-
vam, Henry Harrise, Ad-
miral Gago Coutinho and
other historians, say that
Gaspar made several
trips to North America
before the end of the 15th
century.

They offer topo-
graphical names of Gaspe
and Montreal in Canada
to back up their opinions.

In his last voyage, made
in May 1501, Gaspar's
ship did not return to Por-
tugal with the other two

that carried 57 American’

Indians.
In May 1502, Gaspar’'s
brother, Miguel Corte-

Real left Lisbon in com-
mand of three ships also
carrying a King’s grant.

The ships arrived at
Newfoundland in June of
that year. The explorers
began to look in different
directions for Gaspar’s
ship.

On Aug. 1502, two of
Miguel’s ships assembled
at a designated place in
order to return to Por-
tugal. Miguel’s ship failed
to how up. After waiting
two days the captains of
the other ships
without their comman-
der’'s caravel. Miguel
never returned and an ex-
pedition the following
year failed to show any
sign of him or his ship.

Time had eroded the
face of the rock. Dela-
barre used a series of
compounds and methods
to trace the many inscrip-

left.

tions, some superimposed
over the others.

Finally, using a flash-
light at night, he recorded
the faint shadowy impres-
sions with a camera.
Delabarre found the name
“Miguel Corte Real” just
in front of the 1511 date.

Delabarre’s theory is
that Miguel came here
after his disappearance
from Newfoundland, and
was adopted by an Indian
tribe. !

The theory in recent
years was added to by
Professor Joseph D.
Fragoso of New Bedford,
a moving force in the
preservation and realiza-
tion of the modern
museum for the rock.

In 1959 Fragoso, and his
protege, Dr. Manuel Lu-
ciano da Silva of Bristol,
chalked in three key areas
of the rock.

They said the marking
to the left was the Por-
tuguese Royal Coat of
Arms with the five Quinas
or “U” shaped scut-
cheons, each one contain-
ing five dots. These are
the characteristic unit of
the Portuguese national
emblem.

The middle marking, as
chalked in, was identified
as the Cross of the Order
of Christ, the symbol of all
Portuguese Christianized
discoveries, and dis-
played on the sails of the
few remaining Portu-
guese sailing ships even to
this day.

To the far left, Fragoso
opined, is a shield which
Delabarre had discovered
and which is represen-
tative of the Portuguese
Royal Coat of Arms.

The 1511 date, Fragoso
says, is in keeping with
Miguel’s departure dates
and area of probe, and
that he and his brother
Gaspar, with their respec-
tive crews, were the first
civilized settlers of the
New World, some 109
years before the Pilgrim’s

Mayflower landed in
Plymouth.

To further the theory,
the undisputed findings on
Yelala Rock on the
African West Coast were
cited. There, as on
Dighton Rock, was the
name of the captain,
Diogo Cao and the date of
the discovery, 1483. Also
there is a similar Por-
tuguese Royal Coat of
Arms and also the Cross
of the Order of Christ.

The amazing similarity
of both inscriptions gives
weight to the Miguel Corte
Real theory, in that beth
were made by men .
similar training and prin-
ciples following the king’s
grant rule of land mark-
ing for new discoveries.

Fragoso, a former
foreign language instruc-
tor at Hunter College,
N.Y., turned out nu-
merous historial pam-
phets on the rock to sup-
port the Corte-Real
theory. He founded the
Miguel Corte-Real Society
to preserve the rock.

Subsequently Edmund
Dinis of New Bedford, as
a state senator and prior
to becoming district at-
torney and later county
treasurer, filed a bill that
led to state acquisition
and development of 50-
acres of
Dighton Rock State Park.

The rock was initially
claimed by the Old Colony
Historical Seociety in
Taunton. In 1859 or 1860
ownership passed to the
Royal Society of Copen-
hagen, at which time the
rock was considered to
hold a record of the at-
tempt to colonize Vinland
by Thorfinn in 1007.

While intentions were to
transport the rock to Den-
mark, the plan was subse-
quently ruled impracti-
cal. ;

The Boston (Scandina-
vian) Memorial Club ob-
tained title to the land in
February 1877. But after

the site as.

its members had died
without any site develop-
ment the land was taken
in hand by the Old Colony
Society once more.
Fragoso led an unsuc-
cessful fight to defeat the
Dinis bill, contending the
Miguel Corte-Real Society
was the real owner. Da
Silva encouraged the
state to expand the park
and build the museum.

In 1958 a Superior Court

jury awarded the society
$8,800 for a tract, adjacent
to the rock, which Fra-
goso and others said they
purchased in 1953 for
$5,000 but had developed
to a state that it had
become worth up to
$50,000.
« On May 14, 1977, with
much pomp and cere-
mony, with represen-
tatives not only of the
Portuguese, but Leb-
anese, Indian and Viking
cultures present, the
state-built, two-building
complex was dedicated.

Even then, speakers
told of 35 theories of the
markings, which include
proposed visits of Egyp-
tians in 2700 B.C. and the
Norse in A.D. 1008.

To the music and danc-
ing of various cultures,
the octagonal building
was dedicated to the cen-
turies. Inside, the 11 by
five foot, by seven foot
deep rock is on lighted
display, along with a
replica of Vasco da
Gama'’s ship Sao Gabriel;
an Indian mosiac; a
model of Fernand Magel-
lan’s ship Victoria; and a
1,600 pound marble
padrao or marker used by
Portuguese explorers in
staking out their new ter-
ritorial claims.

Until a more sophisti-
cated method of cryptic
analysis is found, Dighton
Rock will retain its aura
of mystery as perhaps the
first landing site of
civilized man in the new
world.
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Whitened areas on Dighton Rock, shown before it was placed in the
museum, represent the three symbols above them, according to the
Miguel CorteReals visit theory. Left is the Portuguese Royal Coat of
Arms; center the Cross of the Order of Christ carried on sails of all

vessels; and at right a shield within a shield also representative of the
royal arms.



Most popular theory of the inscriptions on Dighton Rock is that they
carry the name of famed Portuguese explorer Miguel CorteReal; the 1511
date, which fits history; and the territorial markings mandated to be
used in marking the new world lands. Whitened areas show inscriptions
pointing up the markings which are included in those allegedly of Indians,
Phoenicians, Egyptians and Norsemen.



Dedicated in May 1977, the museum houses historic Dighton Rock
from the sand and fides which have eroded much of its inscriptions; as
well as models of Portuguese ships, land markers and artifacts of Indians
unearthed at the site.



